ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 8, 2004
1:12 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom Co-Chair
Representati ve Beverly Masek, Co-Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative N ck Stepovich
Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Cheryll Heinze, Vice Chair
Representative Beth Kerttul a

COWMWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 26( RES)

Requesting the United States Departnent of the Interior and the
United States Departnent of Justice to appeal the decision of
the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Crcuit in The
Wl derness Society v. United States Fish and WIldlife Service
and to seek an energency stay of the decision pending an appeal
of the deci sion.

- MOVED CSSJR 26(RES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 478
"An Act relating to the issuance of commercial fishing interim
use permts; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 478 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 444
"An Act relating to direct marketing fisheries businesses, to
the fisheries business tax, and to liability for paynent of
taxes and assessnents on the sale or transfer of fishery
resources; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 444(FSH) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 319

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 8, 2004



"An Act relating to the disposal of state land by lottery; and
relating to the disposal, including sale or |ease, of renpte
recreational cabin sites.”

- MOVED CSHB 319(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SJR 26

SHORT TI TLE: SALMON ENHANCEMENT | N W LDERNESS AREAS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) WAGONER

02/ 06/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 06/ 04 (S) RES

02/ 20/ 04 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 20/ 04 (S) Moved CSSJR 26(RES) Qut of Committee
02/ 20/ 04 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 23/ 04 (S) RES RPT CS FORTHCOM NG 5DP

02/ 23/ 04 (S) DP: OGAN, SEEKINS, STEVENS B, WAGONER,
02/ 23/ 04 (S) DYSON

02/ 25/ 04 (S) RES CS RECEI VED NEW TI TLE
02/ 27/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 27/ 04 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSJR 26( RES)

03/ 01/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 01/ 04 (H) RES

03/ 08/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 478
SHORT TITLE: COWMERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H FSH, RES

02/ 27/ 04 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 27/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 04 (H M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 01/ 04 (H FSH AT 9:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 01/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 478(FSH) CQut of Conmittee
03/ 01/ 04 (H M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 03/ 04 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 5DP 2NR

03/ 03/ 04 (H DP: OGG, HEINZE, W LSON, SAMJELS,
03/ 03/ 04 (H SEATON; NR GARA, GUTTENBERG

03/ 08/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 444
SHORT TITLE: DI RECT MARKETI NG FI SHERI ES BUSI NESS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 8, 2004



02/ 09/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 09/ 04 (H) FSH, RES, FIN

02/ 18/ 04 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 18/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 04 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 25/ 04 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 25/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 444(FSH) Qut of Committee
02/ 25/ 04 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 26/ 04 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 2DP 3NR

02/ 26/ 04 (H) DP: WLSON, SEATON, NR. OGG SAMUELS,
02/ 26/ 04 (H GUTTENBERG

03/ 08/ 04 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 319
SHORT TI TLE: REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FATE

05/ 14/ 03 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
05/ 14/ 03 (H) STA, RES, FIN

01/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

01/ 13/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 13/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 03/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 10/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 19/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 19/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 319(STA) Qut of Committee
02/ 19/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 23/ 04 (H STA RPT CS(STA) 2DP 4NR 1AM

02/ 23/ 04 (H) DP: GRUENBERG, LYNN, NR. SEATON, HOLM
02/ 23/ 04 (H) COGHI LL, VEYHRAUCH. AM BERKOW TZ
03/ 01/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 01/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 01/ 04 (H M NUTE( RES)

03/ 08/ 04 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SJR 26.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 8, 2004



DON JOHNSON, Menber

Kenai Ri ver Professional Guide Association (KRPGA)

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SIR 26.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 478 and HB 444.

JON GOLTZ, Assistant Attorney General

Nat ural Resources Section

G vil Division

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 478, presented
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

| AN FI SK, Staff

to Senator Bert Stedman

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As staff to the sponsor of the Senate
conpanion bill, testified to the changes nmade to CSHB 444(FSH).

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Fi shernmen's Alliance (SEAFA)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 444.

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff

to the Joint Legislative Sal non I ndustry Task Force

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 444, provided
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

KENNETH DUCKETT, Executive Director

Uni ted Sout heast Al aska G llnetters (USAG

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 444.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 8, 2004



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 319, answered
guestions on behalf of the bill sponsor, Representative Fate.

NANCY WELCH, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 319, answered
questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-13, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12 p.m Represent ati ves Masek,
Dahl strom Gatto, Lynn, Stepovich, WIf, and GGuttenberg were
present at the call to order.

SJR 26- SALMON ENHANCEMENT | N W LDERNESS AREAS

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 26(RES), Requesting the
United States Departnment of the Interior and the United States
Departnent of Justice to appeal the decision of the United
States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Crcuit in The WI derness
Society v. United States Fish and WIldlife Service and to seek
an energency stay of the decision pending an appeal of the
deci si on.

CO CHAI R MASEK turned the gavel over to Co-Chair Dahl strom

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
sponsor, explained that SJR 26 involves the sal non enhancenent
project in Tustunena Lake. On Decenber 30, 2003, the N nth
Circuit Court of Appeals made the decision that the Tustunena
Lake sal non enhancenent project violates the WIderness Act in
two ways. First, he said the court considered [the Tustunena
Lake sal non enhancenent project] to be a comercial enterprise
because commercial fishernmen benefit from the project. He said
that's true in a way, but comercial fishernen do not benefit
from this project within the wlderness area. He said the
salnon are planted in Tustunena Lake, "out-mgrate,"” and return
four to five years |ater.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 8, 2004



SENATOR WAGONER said there are three or four different [groups]
of people that benefit because of the fish that are planted,
which are: Commrercial fishernen, personal use fishernmen, sports
fisherman, and sonetinmes subsistence fishernen. Noti ng that
there is a large personal use fishery at the nouth of the
Kasilof River, he said comercial fishermen that benefit are
generally the setnetters who fish on the shore-based nets,
mainly below the Kasilof River. He noted that about 100, 000
fish come back from this project. He said the second objection
the court had is that [the enhancenent project] mght not be
consistent with preserving the natural conditions of the area
He maintained that [the enhancenent project] is consistent, and
said all that would be done through the aquaculture association
is enhance the ability of the [salnbn] fry to survive and
return.

Number 0295

SENATOR WAGONER said SJR 26 is requesting that the decision be
appeal ed and that an energency stay of the decision be ordered.
He said if the court does not stay the decision, 5 to 6 mllion
salnon fry are going to be destroyed and di sposed of because the
fry cannot be put into another [water] system w thout going
through the Al aska Departnment of Fish and Ganme (ADF&GS) and
receiving the [necessary] permts. He said it's just about too
late to do that process, and it is very critical to get a stay
if possible. Noting that this project has been in operation for
close to 30 years, he said it started out as a state project and
when the state elimnated FRED [Fisheries Rehabilitation
Enhancenent and Devel opnent], it was turned over to the Cook
I nl et Aquaculture Association (ClAA), which has maintained the
project ever since. He said it's a long-term project.

SENATOR WAGONER explained that the reason for requesting the
appeal is backed up by an email contained in the bill packets
from Martin Bushman, Legal Counsel, Utah Division of WIldlife
Resources, who points out the sane problens with the court

decision that the State of Al aska does. He said there is a
possibility that with this decision other activities in these
W | derness areas are at risk. He said [activities] such as

taking guided people [into the area] for kayaking or horseback
riding excursions or transporting people into these areas may be
f or bi dden. He remarked, "W think this is where they' re going
with this ... decision.”

SENATOR WAGONER said the reason [SIJR 26] is being rushed through
is that the keynote speaker at the energy council is going to be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 8, 2004



Gail Norton, Secretary of the Interior, and "we would like to
hand her a copy of this resolution while we're back there and go
over it wth her,” because there's sone hesitancy on the
Solicitor General's part to proceed with this suit and the State
of Alaska can't proceed with it.

Nunber 0492

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated support for the resolution. He
remarked, "To ne, it's just another in a series of outrages by
the Ninth Crcuit Court of Appeals.” He suggested that there is
a history of outrageous decisions from the Ninth Crcuit Court

of Appeals. Representative Lynn said he thought this should
bol ster "our attenpts” to get Alaska renoved from the N nth
Crcuit, so "we don't have outrages |ike this, and other
outrages from that district.” He said he can't understand why

the [salnon] fry can't be put into the |ake, because as he
understands it that would not be introducing a new species [of
sal non] . He remarked, "It's just enhancing what God put there
to begin with."

SENATOR WAGONER said CIAA's director, a representative of the
W | derness Soci ety, and another conservation group had a neeting
in Anchorage and realized that this was a problem and asked
that this be allowed. However, he said since the court decision
has already been nmade, there is no way that this can be done
wi thout a stay of the court decision. He said it is not that
sinple to say a mstake was made, ask for it to be rectified
and have the enhancenent [project] continue for at least this
one cycle. That's kind of where it stands right now, he noted.

Nunber 0668

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there was soneone from ACV [ Al aska
Conservation Voters] or the WIlderness Society available to
testify.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM i ndi cated that there was not.

Nunber 0684

REPRESENTATI VE  STEPOVICH asked if the state's [federal]
del egati on supports this resol ution.

SENATOR WAGONER replied yes.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 8, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE STEPOVICH asked who is going to present the
resol ution.

SENATOR WAGONER said he and Senator Scott Ogan woul d present it
to [Gail Norton].

Nunmber 0733

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if CIAA has quantified an inpact of
the danage that was caused two years ago when the [flood]
occurred at Tustunena [ Lake]. He asked how it has inpacted the
natural [sal non] run.

SENATOR WAGONER said it may have, but he had not been given that
information. He explained that there was a trenendous anount of
damage done to the spawning area on the upper end of the
Tustunmena system Senat or Wagoner renmarked, "Cenerally, that's
what the people would argue; ... that's nature's way, and |et
happen what ever happen.” He suggested that the Ninth Grcuit
Court of Appeals is generally overrul ed about 85 percent of the
tinme. Senator Wagoner said if "we" can get this appealed to the
U S. Suprene Court, then "we'll" have a good record.

Number 0831

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said [language] on page 2 "talKks
about” the contribution to the lives and activities of the
residents on the Kenai River and of the hardships. He asked if
there is quantitative nunber on the loss of economni ¢
opportunity, such as how nmany fish are | ost.

SENATOR WAGONER r emar ked:

It's about 100,000 red salnon .... These are early

return fish; they're primarily a beach caught
fish. ... At fifty cents a pound, times four or five
pounds, ... let's say they're a five-pound average,

that 's two and a half dollars tinmes 100,000. It just
depends on where you want to stop on the economc
chai n. ... You can say that turns over four timnes
into the community or two tines.

SENATOR WAGONER said it's an indetermnable nunber, but it's
part of the overall economc part of the fishery. He said a
substantial nunber of those [fish] are caught in the personal
use fishery, which takes place for several days at the nouth of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 8, 2004



the Kasilof River. He said a lot of people take part in that
fishery.

Nunber 0921

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how |ong the stay would have to
be in order to release the fish fromthe hatchery into the | ake.

SENATOR WAGONER said any stay would have to run past the end of
June. He said the [salnon fry] are loaded into a float plane
near Seward and flown directly over and deposited into the
Tustunena Lake, which probably happens in June.

Number 0980

DON JOHNSON, Menber, Kenai River Professional CGuide Association
(KRP&Y), testified. He said KRPGA is opposed to SJR 26, and
al though [ KRPGA] is basically against nost of the Ninth Crcuit
Court of Appeals decisions, it tends to go along with this
deci si on. He said there have been a lot of general problens
W th stocking in Tustunena Lake. M. Johnson said there are a
few parts of the [resolution] that appear to be pure
m sinformation, for exanple, he said the part about commerci al

activities. He said he went through the WIderness Act and
didn't see that kind of thing in it, in fact, there are a few
clauses in there that specifically exenpt that stuff. He said

the actual statenents that are comng out and saying this
attenpt of the Ninth Grcuit Court of Appeals is ained at going
after tourism kayaking, guiding, outfitting, and that kind of
thing is not seen in the WI derness Act.

MR, JOHNSON said apparently there are a bunch of people that
want these fish to go into the [Tustunena Lake] and are trying
to use msinformation "in order to keep it there." M. Johnson
said if those people want to keep it there on their own nerits,
but are trying to drag a bunch of other things into it to
sonehow justify getting this case appealed again, is not what

"we're really looking to do." He said [the resolution] nmakes it
look like there is 100 percent agreenent to get the case
appeal ed, but "we don't see it." M. Johnson said there have

been a lot of problens up there with the planning of fish, and
it is not particularly in the sane area as the "wlderness
people are going with this thing." He suggested that a |ot of
the people who are trying to keep that project going are using
what he sees as msinformation to dilute what is going on in the
Wl derness Act "to say that it's doing sonmething and it's not."
M. Johnson said unless soneone is going to come up wth

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 8, 2004



specifics and point it out and say exactly what it is going to
do, he can't see it "doing that." He said he was referencing
sections "4(d)(1) and 4(d)(6)" of the WIderness Act, which both
specifically allow aircraft, notorboats, kayaking, recreationa
comercial activities, and so forth.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he believes the entire Kenai Peninsula
del egati on understands the inpacts that have taken place wth
the flood and the slide, which inpacted the systens draining
into the Tustunmena Lake. He said his concern is that what is
being talked about is an event that took place by "nother
nature" that has decimated part of the salnon run. He said now
"we're" having the court system do the sane thing by not
allowing the CIAA to deposit the [salnmon fry] into the |[ake

"we're" affecting an econony twice - the comercial fishery,
sport fishery, personal use fishery, and subsistence [fishery].
Representative WIf said "we" can't do anything about nother
nature, but "we" can do sonething about the Ninth Crcuit Court
of Appeals. He stated his support.

Nunber 1256

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Johnson about the definition of
the words "comrercial enterprise".

MR JOHNSON said he believed that was in the W1l derness Act.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Johnson if he knew the
definition.

MR JOHNSON i ndi cated he didn't.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said it is an inportant term as far as the
[resolution] is concerned. He said he thought it was of real
value to establish ahead of tine what those two words actually
nmean. He said if this language is going to be referred to in
sone of the supporting docunents, he thinks it 1is pretty
valuable to him to know exactly what it neans. Representati ve
Gatto suggested that sonmething as sinple as taking a relative
who is not a resident of the state on a trip in the state is a
m nor form of sone sort of a comercial enterprise. He said if
he operates a business, that is a mjor form of a conmercia
enterprise. Representative Gatto asked if there is a dividing
line, so that he can understand [what actions] violate the Ninth
Circuit Court of Appeals ruling or the WIderness Act or
anyt hi ng el se.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 8, 2004



MR, JOHNSON said section "4(d)(6)" [of the WIderness Act]
specifically allows comrercial services. He remarked, "You can
read whatever you want into that."

Nunmber 1368

SENATOR WAGONER said he believes the commercial enterprise
referred to in this bill takes place outside of the entire
W | derness area, which is one of the problens, and the other
comercial enterprise referred to takes place inside the area.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Johnson if there is a
probl em m xi ng hatchery fish with wild stock in that area.

MR, JOHNSON said absolutely; a big problem He said when those
hat chery fish are dropped into the Tustunmena Lake and mx wth
the wild fish, it produces a nassive effort in Cook Inlet wth
gillnetters who basically end up intercepting every wild fish
that could possibly be trying to get into the system on the
Kasilof River, which runs out of Tustunena [Lake]. He said
every tinme "stock fish" are thrown into a system that flows out
into saltwater, it causes an extra increased effort [to harvest
the fish] by gillnetters, and that extra effort actually cones
down to taking a disproportionate anmount of fish. He said if
nore stock fish conme back than wild fish, it wll [produce] an
extra effort to harvest the stock fish, [because] in the process
of trying to harvest the stock fish, a higher percentage of the
wild fish are going to be taken.

MR. JOHNSON said after years of doing that, it degrades the wld
stock down to nothing and results in nothing but stock fish,

whi ch have been planted there year after year. He said that's
been going on in the Tustumena drainage and is the real problem
up there. He said it's been going on for quite a while and

"we've" been trying to get the program shut down just for that
reason, because it's been hard on the wild stock. He said it is
one of the mjor reasons "we've" not tried to put any
"stockings" into the Kenai River because "we" don't want to
damage any of the genetics of the stocks that are in the Kenai
Ri ver. He said the Tustunena Lake [enhancenent project] has
been going on for such a long tinme that it's been very hard to
do anything about it. He said it is nost of the reason for
addressing the resolution at this time, and the Ninth Crcuit
Court of Appeals has conme in and put the "shut down" on this
[ project] for w | derness reasons.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 8, 2004



MR. JOHNSON said it is the "wld factor” that's really got this
thing going for [KRPGA], because it does not [want] the wld
fish wiped out for a bunch of [stocked fish]. He said this is
even bigger than what was suggested. He said when a bunch of
fish are stocked in the Kasilof River, it causes extra effort at
the nmouth of the Kasilof R ver, which inpacts the Kenai River
and that's a huge issue.

Nunmber 1550

SENATOR WAGONER said these fish are genetically exactly the
sane. He explained that the egg take for these fish takes pl ace
in Tustunena Lake; the eggs are taken, fertilized, taken to the
hat chery, hatched, and fed. He said those fish have a better
survival rate by far than those in the wld. Senat or \Wagoner
said there is genetically no difference between a salnon that's
reared for the first two years in the hatchery versus the wld.
He stated that the genetic strain is exactly the sane. He
turned attention to the |ast paragraph of a letter in the bill
packet from Attorney Ceneral G egg Renkes, which read [origina
punct uati on provided]:

If allowed to stand, the Ninth Grcuit's decision my
be wused to burden or elimnate legitimte non-
comercial activities in wlderness that Congress

never neant to bar. W urge you to take action to
correct the Ninth Grcuit's overreaching. Pl ease | et
me know if we can be of any other assistance or
support.

SENATOR WAGONER said to keep in mnd that the director of this
W | derness area had no problem with this fish stocking effort.

He remarked, "W even won, until it was appealed, on a 2 to 1
vote at the Ninth GCrcuit Court." He said it is a matter of
keeping it going to a higher court, which is what's been
happeni ng. Senat or Wagoner remarked, "Every place else, the
decision's been in favor of Cook I nl et Aquacul ture

[ Associ ation]."
Nunmber 1668

CO CHAIR MASEK noved to report [CSSJR 26(RES)] out of conmttee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes, and asked for unaninous consent. There being no
obj ection, CSSIJIR 26(RES) was reported from the House Resources
Standi ng Conm ttee.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 8, 2004



HB 478- COVMERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS

CO CHAIR DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 478, "An Act relating to the issuance of
commercial fishing interimuse pernmts; and providing for an
effective date."

Nunmber 1715

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as sponsor, explained that HB 478 provides for an issuance of a
commercial fishing interimuse permt. The Al aska Court of
Appeals recently held that the Commercial Fisheries Entry
Comm ssion (CFEC) |acked the authority to issue the interimuse
permts (IUP) in fisheries that it doesn't have the authority to

limt. This bill is a house keeping neasure that clarifies that
CFEC does indeed have the authority to issue interimuse permts
in these fisheries. She said this clarification is consistent

with the original intent and purpose of the current statute,
whi ch has been in use for 30 years.

Nunmber 1793

FRANK HOMAN, Comm ssioner, Conmercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion
(CFEC), testified. He explained that HB 478 is a neasure to
clarify that CFEC does have the authority to issue interimuse
permts for fisheries that it may never limt, which has been
the practice for 30 years, since the beginning of the program
He said Assistant Attorney General John Goltz is handling this
appeal in the courts. He explained that three halibut fishernen
canme in from the Exclusive Economc Zone (EEZ) to sell fish in
Alaska and did not have a permt from the State of Alaska to

sell those fish. Those fishernen were cited and the case went
to court. In the court's reading of the original statute, it
took a very narrow reading to say if CFEC could not |imt a
fishery, it could not issue an interimuse permit. He said CFEC
only issues two permits, which are entry permts and interimuse
permts. Every fishery that is not |limted gets an IUP to
authorize it to fish or to have fish in state waters. He
remar ked:

Their narrow reading of the original |anguage, it said
"pending the establishnment” of a maxi num nunber.
Pendi ng the establishnent neans ... we had not |limted
the fishery, where it says "maxi num nunber,"” you can
just put a parenthesis around that and say "a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 8, 2004



limtation" because ... when we establish a maxinmum
nunber, that neans we |limted the fishery.

"Pendi ng" nmeans we may never do it, and there's sone

fisheries, probably, we will ... never do. So, we've
al ways understood that broadly, and the [Al aska] Court
of Appeals understood it narrowly. ... The Depart nent

of Law (DOL) has appealed this decision to the Al aska
Suprene Court to clarify that the original intent was
to issue interimuse permts in any fishery that was
not |imted.

That's in the court now, and this clarification, as
M. CGoltz may testify, will help in his presentation
to say that the legislature really did nean that they

could issue interimuse permts from the very
beginning, so that's in essence ... what the bill
says.
Nunmber 1988
CO CHAIR MASEK said the bill is very straightforward and is a
"housekeeping” bill to ensure that the |anguage is consistent
with the intent of the original statute. She said as many
menbers know from experience, sonetines the legislature has to
go back and do housekeepi ng. She said she would like to nove
this bill forward.
Nunmber 2004
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if this bill is retroactive.
MR. HOVAN replied no. The purpose of the initial bill was to
change the |anguage of the bill to clarify that the CFEC did
have the authority to issue the IUP, which it has done for 30
years. He said the House Special Conmittee on Fisheries added

the retroactivity section to further support DOL in its appeal,
by saying the |egislature understands and authorizes that CFEC

has always had that ability. He said the retroactivity was
included to support that position, but he thought the attorney
woul d say that it probably won't have a major inpact. He said

[the | egislature] couldn't go back 30 years and change | aws, but
it does give the "flavor" of the legislature as far as its
opinion of this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that this is very hard for him
He remarked, "Sonebody wants to say sonething's retroactive 30-

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 8, 2004



plus years, and you're saying we're only talking about the
flavor, well, | think nmaybe we can tal k about the flavor w thout
putting it into statute ...."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if this was a part of the original
bill or if it was an anmendnent.

MR. HOVAN said an anendnent was added in the House Speci al
Commttee on Fisheries to show legislative support for the
state's position.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said this is a 31-year retroactivity cl ause
and "anyone would raise their eyebrows as to anything

retroactive,” but 31 years is a generation backwards. He asked
if it is inperative that the [retroactivity clause be included]
or whether it is just to add sone flavor to the bill. He said
he is not in favor of usually adding flavor to a statute. He

asked M. Goltz to comment about how valuable or inportant it is
to be retroactive.

Nunber 2126
JON GOLTZ, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Nat ur al Resour ces
Section, Civil D vision, Departnent of Law, testified. M

Goltz said he understands there to be two purposes for the
retroactivity provision that was added in the House Speci al
Commttee on Fisheries. He explained that the first reason is
to essentially ratify the interpretation and the application
that CFEC had adhered to the statute since it first started
issuing interim use and entry permts in 1974. M. CGoltz said
CFEC has always interpreted this statute, as it currently
exists, to essentially nean that it has the authority to issue
IUPs in every Alaskan fishery that has not been |imted. He
said a narrower reading was reached by the Alaska Court of
Appeal s t hat creates sone question about whet her t he
interpretation and application CFEC has been giving the statute
has been incorrect in other instances, and it raised the concern
about potential suits against the state arguing that CFEC has
issued permits and therefore requires permt fees in instances
where it lacks the statutory authority. He said that has
actually cone to pass and there have been two class action suits
that have been filed on the basis of the holding of the [Al aska]
Court of Appeals decision asking for reinbursenent of fees that
the fishernen paid for | UPs.

Nunber 2271

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 8, 2004



MR, GOLTZ said the feeling of the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries nenbers who supported the anendnent was that the
retroactivity provision would help give further assurance of
protection and ensure that interpretation of the current statute
by the [Al aska] Court of Appeals was not for the use to subject

the state for liability in other instances. He expl ai ned that
the other purpose for the retroactivity provision, as he
understands it, is to provide any additional argunments that
m ght be nade available to the state in the context of the
currently filed court cases. He said there's supposed to be a
crimnal case that the [Alaska] Court of Appeals has ruled on
that has been appealed to the suprenme court, but it is still in

court and has not been decided yet, in addition to the two class
action cases that he'd nentioned.

MR. GOLTZ said the [House Special Conmittee on Fisheries] seened
to understand that there would be sone potential constitutiona
restrictions on whether or not this change, if adopted by the
| egi slature, could be applied retroactively in those cases that
are already in progress. He said he testified before the House
Special Conmttee on Fisheries that there would be sone strong
argunments he thought he could make on the basis of a retroactive

bill to show that the CFEC has had the authority to issue these
permts all along. M. CGoltz said even though there was sone
guestion about whether that would ultimtely prevail in the

courts (indisc.) that could be worthwhile argunments for him
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO r enar ked:
Wth the understanding that the crimnal case

currently before the suprenme court, and the potenti al
for reinbursenent of past fees paid, and retroactivity

m ght not be allowed in all cases, | have to tell you
that short of sonme conpelling reason and absolute
necessity for retroactivity of 31 years, | find that
section of this bill very difficult to support.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. &oltz if he would agree or
di sagr ee.

MR, GOLTZ said in his view the retroactivity provision in this
bill is not problematic because the bill is essentially
conformng the |anguage of the statute to the way the current
statute has always been interpreted and applied by state
agencies. He said to the best of his reading of the |egislative
history of the bill, it is also consistent with what the intent
of the legislature has been since this |anguage was initially

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 8, 2004



adopted in 1973. M. CGoltz said with that understanding, he
didn't think that any new requirenments or provision is being
added retroactively by this bill. He said it is essentially a
clarifying anendnment in the sense that it ratifies the
interpretation that's always been given to the statute in the
past. M. CGoltz said it is also a curative in the sense that it
is made in response to and disapproval of the [Ninth Crcuit]
Court of Appeals decision. He said the argunents that he is
maki ng on behalf of the state to the suprene court are that the
current statute essentially neans what this bill better
expresses, so in light of that he doesn't think there is any new
requi renent being inposed retroactively by this bill

Number 2373

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how that would change anything. He
remarked, "If we say today, this is what we firnmly believe is
true and what was intended by the past, that still holds whether
or not we nake it retroactive to the past, doesn't it?"

MR. GOLTZ said he would agree that there is an issue there and
there are sone argunents that could be nade on both sides about
the extent to which this legislature could do anything to change
what a previous |legislature nmeant when it adopted a statute. He
said he thought the effect that that would have in the
application of the law in any particular instance would best be
decided by the court. He said he didn't feel like he could
express the wshes about what would be resolved in every
possi bl e ci rcunstance.

Number 2503

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Goltz if the retroactive clause
woul d cost the state any noney.

MR. GOLTZ said he thought there was a reasonable basis for the
decision that was nmade to apply this retroactively, which is to
essentially ratify the interpretation that's been given to
(indisc.) historically. M. CGoltz said he does recognize that
there are sone instances in which the application of it
retroactively could be problematic constitutionally. He said
this bill would initially present that it was intended sinply to
give CFEC the ability to continue to apply the law the way it
always has in the past, not withstanding the [Ninth GCircuit]
Court of Appeals decision, but to the extent that this
| egi slature can apply the law retroactively to basically renove
the lack of authority that mght be argued for the issuance of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 8, 2004



other permts. M. Coltz said he thought it was a reasonable
thing to do, although he recognized that there can be sone
di spute about the applicability of that.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF suggested there would be a fiscal note.
MR, GOLTZ di sagreed. He said he was not aware how this bill
even applied retroactively, would cause any appropriations to be

made.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if the retroactive clause was going to
"feed the fire" of the class action | awsuits.

MR. GOLTZ said in his judgnment it would not.
Number 2641

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if it would "danper the fire" of
the | awsuits.

MR, GOLTZ said arguably yes, but he was not sure that it was
going to have a strong effect one way or the other, but if it

had any effect, it would be to discourage anybody seeking to
bring a claim maki ng the argunent that CFEC |acks the authority
to issue permts in the past. He said because the retroactive

provision would allow DOL to argue that, if that were true under
a previous version of the law, that was effectively cured by the
retroactive adoption of that authority in order to bring a
wording of the statute into line with the practice and the
intent all along.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said the courts are going to rule on
the original lawsuit as it is. He asked how nuch weight the
courts are going to place on this bill with the retroactive date
on those current standi ng cases.

MR. GOLTZ said he didn't know for sure. He said because he is
the person who is advocating on behalf of the state in these
cases he is not in a good position to nake that argunent in a
strong fashion, because it would essentially run counter to the
goal he is serving for the state.

Nunber 2736
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if changing it to be retroactive would

make it effective as of 30 years ago and if the court would have
to base it upon the bill with it being retroactive.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 8, 2004



CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked if the original version of the bill did
not include the |anguage adding the uncodified |aw by anmending
the new section for retroactivity. She asked Representative
Wlson to comment on how and why it was necessary to add that.
She said she thought there is a general feeling from commttee
menbers that they mght be nore confortable in adopting the
original version

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said the intent of the legislation itself
was for «clarification, and the J[uncodified law was added
because of M. oltz's testinony that there were sone class
action lawsuits ready to happen because of this. She said the
amount of the pernmit is $150 and she thought the fishermen were
probably not going to gain fromthat, but the attorneys probably
woul d. She said [the committee] thought that the there m ght be
a possibility that it would help the class action lawsuit. She
said she was not "locked in" to that part of it, but it could be
a possibility that it m ght help.

Nunber 2841

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 478 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 478 was reported from the
House Resources Standing Comm ttee.

HB 444- DI RECT MARKETI NG FI SHERI ES BUSI NESS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 286, the conpanion bill.]

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the next order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 444, "An Act relating to direct
mar keting fisheries businesses, to the fisheries business tax,
and to liability for paynent of taxes and assessnents on the
sale or transfer of fishery resources; and providing for an
effective date.” [Before the commttee was CSHB 444(FSH). ]

Number 2890

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as sponsor, explained that HB 444 is about a fisheries business
tax (FBT) and how that tax relates to a sector of the commerci al
fishing industry known as direct marketing fisheries businesses.
She said in 1913, when the territory of Al aska decided to gain
revenue for the fishing industry, this tax was put into place.
It is the oldest tax in Alaska and was |evied on processing

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 8, 2004



conpani es. The percentage was 3 percent on shore-based
processors and 5 percent on floating-fisheries processors. She
said the floating businesses are primarily large nobile
processing facilities, and are assessed at a higher rate to
conpensate for the fact that they do not operate |like a shore-

based plant does. This bill focuses on a group of fishing
busi nesses that do not fit the old definition of the FBT. She
explained that this bill is a conpanion bill to SB 286, and is a
bill that took years of negotiations between the industry and
governnent. She said the Joint Legislative Sal non |Industry Task
Force endorses this bill wunaninously. She said the bill is

about fairness and "leveling the playing field."

CO CHAI R MASEK asked for a brief overview of the changes nade to
CSHB 444( FSH) .

TAPE 04-13, SIDE B

Number 2990

| AN FI SK, Staff to Senator Bert Stedman, Al aska State
Legislature, testified. [ Senator Stedman was sponsor of the SB

286, the conpanion bill.] Speaking to changes made in CSHB
444(FSH), he turned attention to page 4, line 5, and he said the

word  "unprocessed” was added into the language as a
clarification to ensure that the [tax] is on the unprocessed
value [of the catch]. He explained that one of the things this
bill does is it clarifies the wvalue of fish that direct
mar keting fisheries are supposed to pay tax on. M. Fisk said
the bill changes the tax rate for direct marketers from 5

percent to 3 percent because in existing |aw many of the direct
mar ket fisheries businesses who do processing on board are
basically considered to be the sane as floating fisheries
business. He clarified that these are small vessels.

Number 2912

MR. FISK explained that this is the oldest tax in the state and
as it has evolved over the years, it hasn't really nade a
di stinction between small boat vessels, which do sone processing
on board, and large floating processors, which are basically

floating canning |ines. He said this is a fair distinction to
make for small boats that are operating out of Al askan towns.
He said the bill changes the point of taxation; the "raw fish
tax" - the nicknanme for fisheries business tax - is applied to

the raw fishery resource as it's delivered to a processor, which
is the way a vast majority of fish are delivered, and is kind of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 8, 2004



the first point of sale. M. Fisk said the point that one is
taxed on in the direct nmarket business is often a retail point
of sale, so [the bill] rectifies that problem and provides
fairness and a level playing field. He said [the bill]
rectifies the due dates for all taxes that a direct market
busi ness would pay to April 1. There are a few other taxes that
t he busi nesses have to pay if handling salnmon such as a hatchery
and marketing tax. He said instead of paying the taxes nonthly,
it would be paid once a year, which makes it easier for snall
busi nesses to do the bookkeepi ng.

MR FISK said [the bill] is a tightly woven conprom se [that
resulted] from the Joint Legislative Salnon Industry Task Force

process. He said the definition of a "direct market vessel" is
[a vessel] that is 65 feet or wunder, which made sone of the
| arger processors nore confortable with the bill, and it applies
only to the product that 1is caught and marketed by the
fi sher man. He said a direct market vessel can't buy product
from ot her vessels. M. Fisk explained that the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR) will be revenue neutral to the state because there
are sone provisions of the bill that bring in better conpliance

with the FBT and close a few |oopholes on certain types of
di rect market vessels.

MR, FISK said this bill is helping out small Al askan busi nesses
and because of current market conditions fishernen are |o0sing
their markets and don't have any other options but to try to

sell their own product. He suggested the bill would help snmal
Al askan busi nesses. M. Fisk noted that this is a conprom sed
bill that a lot of work had been put into. He urged the

commttee to pass the bill

CO- CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked M. Fisk to comment on the $25, 000 that
is going to conme out of the general fund.

MR. FISK said the requested position for DOR is the only fisca
inpact that this bill wll have. He said the point is to give
DOR the extra ability to check the conpliance with the tax.

COCHAIR DAHLSTROM asked WM. Fisk if he anticipated one
additional position in 2006 and two positions in 2007. She
noted that the [amount of funding requested in the fiscal note]
doubl es in 2007.

MR. FISK said he is not certain why there is a difference [in

fundi ng] between the two years. He said he thought it was
because there won't really be any tax returns for the departnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 8, 2004



to go over for the first part of the [2006] fiscal year, and it
woul dn't be until the mddle or the end of the year. He said in
the long run, [DOR] will end up with a $50,000 estinate every
year.

Nunber 2745

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the definition of unprocessed
[fish].

MR. FISK said in sone cases a troller can gut and gill a fish,
which is kind of the industry standard for trollers, and the
fish is not considered processed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said a fish can be finned, gutted, and it
remai ns unprocessed because the flesh is not exposed to air. He
said he wanted to ensure that was clear to the conmttee because
it wasn't clear to him Representative Gatto noted that the
head of the fish has to stay on otherwise the flesh would be
exposed.

Nunmber 2666

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Fishernen's
Al'liance (SEAFA), testified. Ms. Hansen said [HB 444] is a

conprom sed bill that's been worked through in a public process
for over two years through the Joint Legislative Salnon Industry
Task Force; it has agency support, processor support, and

i ndustry support. She noted that direct marketers had testified
in other commttees but it is the time of year when nost of them
have started to go back out fishing and aren't avail able. MVs.
Hansen urged the commttee to pass the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a [fisherman] can buy fish from
ot hers.

MS. HANSEN said a fisherman cannot buy fish fromothers and be a
direct marketer.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a fisherman can carry another
fisherman's fish into [town] to save that person a trip.

M5. HANSEN said she would have to take a |ook at the Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane's [ADF&E transporter bills to see if
a fisherman can carry in another fisherman's unprocessed fish.
She said she did not know the answer.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 8, 2004



Nunber 2597

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if this bill allows fishernmen to
get together and forma co-op or a processing congl oneration.

MS5. HANSEN said "roundaboutly" that is perm ssible under current
state |aw. She said those activities can still be done even
with this legislation passing. M. Hansen remarked:

They' Il have to go back to the current laws that are
in statute right now and neet those definitions of

what requirenents they'll have to neet for DEC
[ Departnent of Environnental Conservation] processing
standards [and] what requirenents they' Il have to neet
for Departnent of Revenue.

M5. HANSEN said it can still be done, but not as a direct
mar keter dealing with one's own product.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if fishernen will be paying 5 percent
i nstead of 3 percent.

M5. HANSEN answered in the affirnative.
Number 2546

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noted that +the <conmttee had heard a
transporter bill [|ast year. He asked if one boat can haul in
several other fishermen's unprocessed fish.

M5. HANSEN said wthout |ooking at the transporter bill she
didn't remenber if there were any restrictions on whether the
fish had to be processed or unprocessed and she could not answer
t he question.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he specifically remenbered hearing
that bill in commttee last year, which [allowed one boat to
haul sever al fishermen's fish into town]. He said
Representative Gatto [brought attention to the question] of at
what point does it becone a co-op, and he said he didn't know
that the question was ever addressed.

Nunmber 2463
CHERYL SUTTON, Staff to the Joint Legislative Salnmon Industry

Task Force, Alaska State Legislature, testified. She said the
transporter bill that was passed last year only created the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 8, 2004



opportunity for harvesters to offload unprocessed fish onto
another vessel that acted as a transporting vessel to a
processing plant or a point on land. M. Sutton renarked:

This bill has nothing to do with transporting anyone's
processed fish .... It does not increase any of that
activity; it's a direct marketer, they' re responsible
for their own vessel. They fall under a set of rules

that are very stringent and very well defined, and if
you get into any kind of a processing activity, and we
dealt very closely with all the processors in the
state on this issue, then you ... cone under an entire
set of different regulations, and these folks don't
want to fall under those regulations, they want to do
this activity, try to just expand their own
busi nesses, and perhaps expand their own personal
i ncomes by doing direct marketing, and that's the pure
and sinple of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he didn't want to pass |egislation and
sonmehow be in conflict [with |legislation passed |ast year]. He
said he thought it was great for a person to sell his or her own
fish. Representative Gatto asked if [the bill] defeats what was
passed | ast year.

M5. SUTTON said no; the bill passed last year is a totally
separate issue. She said she believed there are only 12 vessels
in the entire state that applied for a transporter permt of
which only 4 vessels were in salnon fisheries, so there wasn't a
huge use of that piece of legislation to this point. She said
the [two bills] do not cross boundaries in any section of the
| aw. She remarked:

The transporter bill sinply would allow nme as [a]
fisherman - if | were out on the west side of Cook
Inlet harvesting fish and |I'd had no capacity to

offload nmy fish to a processor, but there was a vessel
that was transporting and he had a transporter |icense
and | had the proper licensing - he could take ny fish
to the east side of the inlet and sell those fish
under ny authority, so that they're not mxing the
i ssues at all.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the fishernen whose fish were

being transported would still retain ownership of his or her
fish.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 8, 2004



MS. SUTTON said correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated that if the fish were kept
separately, then there would really be no question that the
transporter was sinply helping by transporting fish for the
ot her fishernen. He said if the fish were kept together, he
would have a different question that has to do w th whether
"we're overstepping the intent here in saying this is a co-op
now, rather than would you mnd carrying nmy fish for ne."

M5. SUTTON said she was going to step back from the issue
because that's a piece of |egislation that was passed |ast year,
is in law, and has absolutely nothing to do with this piece of
| egi sl ati on. She renarked:

| guess that was the only point | really wanted to
nmake clear was that ... you were very clear in the
guestions that you asked |ast year about how ... they
woul d be accountabl e. They spent considerable tine
with the [Al aska] Departnent of Fish & Gane :
ticketing, ... formatting, and making sure that the

individual's fish were <clearly accounted for,

regi stered, and certified, but this is a totally
separate issue. This is a direct marketing bill that
deals with commercial fishing vessels that are under
65 feet, and their regulations are totally different
fromthe transporter regul ations.

Nunber 2233

KENNETH DUCKETT, Executive Director, United Southeast Al aska
Gllnetters (USAG, testified, and he stated that USAG strongly
supports this legislation and has submtted a letter to the
conmmttee expressing its support.

CO- CHAI R DAHLSTROM noted that the next conmittee of referral is
the House Finance Conmttee, which will have the opportunity to
view the fiscal note and nake determ nations [regarding the
fiscal inpact of the bill].

Number 2189
CO CHAIR MASEK noved to report CSHB 444(FSH) out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

notes, and asked for unani nbus consent.

Number 2173

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- March 8, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ected for purposes of discussion.
He remarked:

| think Representative Gatto and | have a simlar
concern that the salnon task force has conme to us with
a series of recomendations and we've passed npst of
them But | think, ... and | don't know how real this
is, but ... certainly a concern ... [of] mne is that
we're changing situations and there are going to be
new processes. And people are going to be taking
advant age of things that are unseen at this point.

... | support this legislation and | think it does
good things, but ... the nore we do of these things,
the nore things that are changing and opportunities
are changi ng and the whol e shape of the business, so |
am concerned about that in the long run. I am not a
commercial fishernmen but | think the dynam cs of the
industry is going to be changi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he had sone reservati ons about HB 444

as well. He indicated that he thought HB 444 ties directly to
the transporter bill passed | ast year.
Nunber 2101

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG r enoved hi s objection.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked if there was further objection. There
being no objection, CSHB 444(FSH) was reported from the House
Resources Standing Committee.

HB 319- REMOTE REC. CABI N SI TE SALES/ LOTTERY SALE

CO- CHAI R DAHLSTROM announced that the final order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 319, "An Act relating to the disposal of
state land by lottery; and relating to the disposal, including
sale or |lease, of renote recreational cabin sites.” [Before the
commttee was Version S, adopted as a work draft on 3/01/04.]

Nunber 2067
JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State

Legislature, noted that the bill had been previously heard in
commttee. He said he was avail able to answer questions.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 8, 2004



CO- CHAI R DAHLSTROM said she had heard sone concerns raised about
services that people may or may not request or feel entitled to
in particular areas, such as schools, roads, energency services,
and so forth.

MR. POUND said there is specific language in existing statute
that deals with that issue and basically says [the state] is not
responsi ble for those things in renote cabin |ocations. He said
he didn't have a copy of that section of statute with him

Number 1970

NANCY WELCH, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), testified. She said the
statute being asked about is AS 38.04.010(b).

The conmittee took an at-ease from2:21 p.m to 2:26 p.m

CO-CHAIR DAHLSTROM asked M. Pound for <clarification on the
i ssue.

MR. POUND directed attention to AS 38.04.010(b), which read in
part:

State land that is |l|ocated beyond the range of
exi sting schools and other necessary public services,
or that is |located where devel opnment of sources of
enpl oynment is inprobable, my be nade available for
seasonal recreational purposes or for Ilow density
settl enent.

The seasonal recreation use or |lowdensity settlenent
shall have sufficient separation between residences so

that public services wll not be necessary or
expect ed. The availability of tinber, firewood, and
water resources shall be considered in determning

separati on between residences.

CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM said the bill has a rather large fiscal note.
She said the next commttee of referral is the House Finance
Commttee, and she is confident "that they will go through this
with a fine-tooth conb.™

Number 1839

CO- CHAIR MASEK noved to report CSHB 319, Version 23-LS0477\S
Bul | ock, 2/ 25/ 04, out of conmmittee W th i ndi vi dual

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- March 8, 2004



reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes, and asked for
unani nous consent.

Nunber 1818

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ected for purposes of discussion. He
called attention to the follow ng |anguage in AS 38.04.010(b):
"The seasonal recreation use or |low density settlenment shall
have sufficient separation between residences so that public
services will not be necessary or expected.” He said he didn't
know how the [legislature] could even determ ne what would be
expected, and that people always expect things once they are

t here. He asked, "Have you ever found a place where people
didn't expect you to stay away or governnment to conme in or
sonebody take care of ne one way or another?" He stated that

that hasn't happened in his experience.

MR, POUND said he is inclined to say that Representative Gatto
is correct in his assessnment, but he believes that this
statutory | anguage does protect the state and ultimately if the
site is wthin a nunicipality or borough, that it would also
protect "thent as well.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it is known or suspected that
that's the situation

MR. POUND said past experience is that no one in a renote cabin
site has expected to have any support from the state as far as
utilities and/ or schools.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it is clear in the bill or in
regul ation that "you sign away your right to having the borough
or the community or sonebody establish schools or fire stations
Cee He said he can foresee the state getting "hung up pretty
bad" as soon as 10 kids show up and "sonebody says | think we
have a right to a high school here.”

MR. POUND noted that he had not seen all of the |anguage that is
involved in the state contract. He said the little bit of
contractual language in this bill is correcting sone of that
contract and he would suspect that the departnent would have
that | anguage within its contract.

Number 1674

M5. WELCH directed attention to AS 38.95.300, a disclainer
applicable to state | and di sposal s, which read:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 8, 2004



Except as otherw se specifically provided, nothing in
this title

(1) obligates the state to provide services to
| and that is disposed of by the state, or any grantee
of the state, or is the subject of any disposal
progr am

(2) limts the authority of the state to dispose
of land or any interest in land or resources in the
area of the current disposal, provides any exclusive
right or interest in the area of the disposal, or
inplies or requires that any disposals made wll be
limted in type or any other manner.

M5. WELCH said it is a broad exclusion, but it doesn't nean that
people won't conme in and ask. She said she believes it gives
the legislature the authority to "go back and say but here's the
| aw. "

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what happens when it conflicts wth
existing law that says if a community has 10 children, it is
entitled to a school. He asked if [AS 38.95.300] would
supercede that law or if it would take precedence over previous
| aw because it was signed into |law | ater.

M5. WELCH said she could not provide |egal advice on that
guestion; it would be something that the |egislature would have
to work out. She explained that in past |and disposals nopst
subdi vi si ons have been | ocated close to existing communities, so
t he school s expand or adapt according to the type of use that is

occurring there. She said nost of the renote parcel program
areas would not see many schools go up in those areas, so she
woul d assume that it would still be the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there were sone that did.

M5. WELCH replied that she did not have first-hand know edge of
it, but it is "kind of one of those disclainers."

Nunmber 1537
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO wi t hdrew hi s objecti on.
CO CHAI R DAHLSTROM asked if there was further objection. There

being no further objection, CSHB 319(RES) was reported from the
House Resources Standing Commttee.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- March 8, 2004



ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:36 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- March 8, 2004



